
UM TED STATES DISM CT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

Case No.22œ R+B129œINpHAIw

vxrrko slw'a s oF AMxmcA

V.

LAZARO HERNANDEA

DefendanK
. 

' /

AGREEb FACTUV  BASIS FOR GTR W  PLEA
(

Dei-endant Lazaro Hernandez (hereinaqer referred to as the çrefendanf ') heieby

acu owledges and avees èat, if this case were to go to dal, tàe United States would

tl the rollo iné facts beyond a reasonabte doubt:establish an prove r

From in or around April 2019, and

. . ' .

Octobçr 2021, in M inmi-Dade andBroward Cotmties, in the Southérn Disdct of Florida,

and elsewhere, the Défeqdant a owingly and willfully combined, conspked,

cpnfederatei apd àgmed w1t11 lndividual 1 and others, in violation pf Title 18, Uited

States Code, Section 371, to (a) with the intent to de% ud and mislead, inkoduce and

deliver for intréductién into interstate commerce, R d cause to be inkoduced and

continuing tbrough in or around at least

. '., ' , .

delivered for introdutuon into interstate commerce, adulterated and misbranded dnlgq, in

violation of Title 21, United States Code, Sections 331(a) and 333(a)(2), and (b) deH ud

the Unijed Sltes by impairing, impedin, g, obs% cting, and defeating through deceie l

and 'dishonest mrzmq, the lawM  govemment flmctions of the FDA iq its oversight.and
i
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' z ' j'

. . ' ' .' '
.

reguladon of the interstate sale and distribution of H gs in the United States and iks

eForts to safegum.d tlx :>1th and safety of conhmmers who purchase drugs in the United '
. . . 

'
. . y

. States. ' '
4 : .

From in or around July 2019, and continuing through in or around at least October

2021, in Minmi-Dade and Broward Coune s, in the Southem Diszct of Florida, and '

elsewhere, the Defendnnt did H owingly and volunfnrily combine, conspire, confederate,

and agree w1t11 Individual 2 and others, in violation of Title 18, United States Code,

Secion 1956(19, to ionduct a snancial fmnKacion afecting interstate commerce, which

fmR cial transactio: involved the proceeds of specised unlawful activity, H owing that

.
, the property involved in the fmancial tmnsaction represented the proceeds of some form .

' 
. , .

of unlawful activlty, and u ow' ing that such kansaction was desia ed, in whple and in

' parta to conceal an; disguise the nature, locadon, source, ownership; ap
, 
d conko' 1 of the .

procieds of specised unlawful activity, in violation of Title 18, United States Code,

Secion 1956(a)(1)(B)(i). n e speèised tmlawful activity was an oFelise involving p
. . 

'

' Fùderal heali care olense, nsmely, a conspiracy to inkoduce into interstate commerce

adultemted and misbrMdld drugs? in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sèction

371, that relates to a health care bgnelk prole , and the inkoduction into interstate
.  . . '

commerce of adtlltemfed and mlKbranded dnlgs, in violation of Title 21, United 'States
j . ' '
j 

' '

'
' Code. Section 331(a), that relates to a health care beneht program.
: '

! ne term tçprescription druj diversion'' tefeaed to the various ways in which

prescription drugs were removed 9om regulated disMbution chnn'nels and subsequently

reiagoduced into the wholesale marketplace. Common methods of prescription drug

2
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divdrsion inctuded acquiring the dnlgs illegally from individual patients for whom the

preàcription dnlgs had been prescribed and dispensed but intentionâlly not consumed.

' th n reintmduced into the' whèlesale marketplace with falseThese diverted drugs were e

docllmentation concealiqg their tnze. source and eventuàlly resold to individual consupers

by jharmacies. The false documentation accompanying the sale of diverted dnlgs
. . . ''

included product tmcing information, which consisted of transaction infofmation,

kansàctitm history, and a transaction statement. The product tracing information

identified, nmong other thiùgs,.the product, the qlmntity, the lot number, stren:th and

dosâge, the date of each àale, and the parties to each transactiolt Such product ttacing

a 
:

lnfhrmation was commonly referred'to ill the industry as tT3s'' or ççpedigrees.''
ç

'

î

' 

.

Allsotuce M edidal Supply LLC, R,SNE LLC, A 1A W holesale LLC, Gente LLC,

and My Meds LLC (collectivety; the ttDrtlg Diversion Companies'') wefe limited liability

companies prganized under the laws of the States of Floridaa Pennsylvmliw New Jersey,

and èonnecticut that ournorted to sell legitimate prescription dnlgs, including expensive! ''m .'t.2 '

HIV medication, to wholesale distributors of pharmaceutical products.

The Defcndant and his ce-conspirators engaged in prescription drug diversion.

n e Defendant and h'is co-conspitators placed th: Drug Diversion Companies In the

names of straw owners. In reality, the Defendant and his co-conspirators controlled and

operated tie Drug Diversion Companies and used these companiej, as well as a pass- '

tkoggh entity, Pgss-rfltrough Entity 1, to selt diverted dnlgs to Wholesale Company 1

(loc>ted' in Mississippi), Wholesale Company 2 (located in Mirylànd), and Wholesale

Company 3 (located in New York) (collectively, the deWholesale Companies'). n e

L#
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Defendant knew that the Whblesale Compe es then resold the divm ed drugs to

pharmacies tbrouglliut the United. Stales. The Deftnrlsnt fzarther hmw that thoso

phnrmacies in hlrn sold and dispensed the div:lled * gs to consumers throughout the

United States and A ically bixk the dmgs to heàlth care benest ppgrams, inkluding

M e ccc.

'fhe divertèd dnzgs +at the Defendant and hk èp-contp:ators sold. to the

W holesale Companies had falsiEed pedigrees, whiçh

cpncerning tùe rlrllgs (f.e., their source and 1ot nllmber), deslgned. to conceal the true

f the drugs. The diverted drugy tbat the Defendant and his cozcohsyirato'i.s soldsourc: o

to the Wkolesale Cpmpe es were also accompaaied by falsised labpling and iuacctuate

atient inserts and direckons for use. For example, many of the patlent insertsP

accomjanying the diverted dnlgs had M ssing inf. ormation, typos, and other eaors.

contained false informatinn .

Additionally, in >t leagt several instàncçs, the diverted drtlgs sold by the Defendant and

his corconspimtors to the W holesale Companies contained the wrong medicaion, broken '

or glossy pills, and even pebbles, a:d phnrmacies complained to jhe W holesale

Compe es about theée problems. The Dçfendnnt wms made aware of sçyeral otlese

complaints from phnrmacies by his co-conspirators, induding Individual 1.

In furtherpce of thc dnlg diversion conspH cy; tbe Defçndsmt and bls co-

conspirators committed numerous oyert acts. For example:

1. On oi About Julw 12, 30.19., the Defendsnt mei with Individual 1 and öther co-
Nj 

= .

. . k . ,cbnspkators in Broward Cotmty, Flcriza, to dtscuss the sale of IIIV drngs at

steeply discounted prices: .

y.#
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2. On or about October 16, 2019, the Defehdant sent Indivsdual 1 a text message

stating, PDint u get the 400 I sent thnl A 1A?''

3. On or àbout October 24, 2019, the Defendant sent Individual 1 a text message
. J

stating, CtCaII I send you like 40 Tnwada with no bâck pack thnl a1l source?''

On or about November 4, 2019, co-conspirators at W holesale Company 1 sent

a paymznt'of approxjmately $957,1 19 to Allsource Medical Supply LLC for

diverted drugs.

5. 0n or aboùt October 5, 2020, co-conspirators at W holesale Company j sent a
. 

'

payment of approximately $1,115,085 to Gentek LLC for diverted drugs.

6. 0. n or aboùt February 24, 2021, co-coliqpirators at W holesale Company 3 sent

a payment of approyimately $2,000,000 to Gentek LLC fpr diverted dnlgs.

ln total, from in or around April 20 l9, and continuing through in or around

Odober 2021, the Defendant and his co-conspirators sold diverted, adtilterated; ahd
, 

' .

misbranded dnlgs, with f'alsitied 'docllmentation, totaling approximately $232,800,000, as

retlected.in the èhart below.

biùebl#epioh , l'liniy#jklbtt . J., ) ! . 

' Cpstpmer 
,. r .., .. #àles

' f' : 11:22, dtljllll!k ' jqkjllt r ,. . . ..
'
:L -gn.. , , -., .

:.
. 

-

. 
' 
z )-t . . ,. ) - .

' 

; . . 
!
. . 

' 

.: ' - . . 
' 

. ,
'
..
- 
.
, 
, .
' - 

, è .
' 

. . ,.,, .
. 

..j . . 
' 

. . è .. . t ..,, .r 
.P#ss-rfhrôugh Entity 1 Jgly 2019 - Apdl 2020 Wholesqle Company 1 $82 million

. xjjssissi i
Allsöurce M edical Oct 2019 = April 2020 W holecale Company 2 $30.6 mizion '

M  land)
Gentik June 2020 - Jan. 2021 Wholesale Comjany 2 $42.9 million

M a land
Gqntek July 2020 - Feb. 202 1 W holesale Company 3 $62:7 lnillion

. 
' 

ew York
My Meds ' Déc: 2020 - July 2021 W holesale Company 3 $ 14.6 million

V nrv' Q W  * %# AYA

yzgz y mjjjujj. 
*

. 
k

Onte the Drug Diversion Companies receiked paymehts from the W holesàle

5

L#

Case 0:22-cr-60129-AHS   Document 82   Entered on FLSD Docket 04/06/2023   Page 5 of 8



,' Companies for th: diverted dmgs, the Defendant and his co-conspirators transferred the

moliey to vadous shell coporations, including M DSD Enterprises LLC, W DS
. , 

NN 
. 

(j yj,ybistfib,utiop Corp, and Elant Whqlesale LLC (colleqtively, the Shetl Laun e g

Companies'') to lamlder the proceeds of the drug diversion tonspiracy. Similar tb the

Drug Diversion Companies,

Laupdering Companies ill the names of straw owners.

co-conspirators ctmtrolled the Shell Laundering Companies and us:d them to conceal

their role in the charged conspiracies and to conceal the nature and source of the illicit
Q. .

proceeds. After transfening the fraud proèeeds to the Shell Laundering Companiek the

ihe Defendant and his co-conspirayors placed the Shell

In reality, ttle Defendnnt and his

Defeqdant and his co-conspirators withdrew the fraud prbceeds in cash from bnnk

accounts of the Shell Laundering Companies. For example, Individual 2. worked with the

straw owners of the Shell Lalmdering Companies to withdraw the f'ràud proceeds in cash
. . û .

and met with the Defendant on numerous occasions to provide the DefendAnt the fraud

proceeds in cash, minus a fee. Specitk 111. stances of money launderlng committed by the

Defendant and his co-conspirators are detailcd in the chqry belowt

. 
.#. é#l4,tj m. .. . .A' ,it!1'1. , . : ' : .. : . . .. : t? t ' ï ) .1 ' è ' C',) . ' , . .. . . ' è''' .ïï' '' ' 7 ' ' ' . - S'- ' . ' ' . q. ;' .. .-' ' i ' E : > : E. '- : l e' .i t . '. . ' y.: . q . ' '' L''7 S-z. ' :. L ' r ' ' - , : , . . , 

'2' (,:- : . u 
'
. 

, . ' *. , .: . . . ... . , r ' .. . . . . ... . ...,.. : . ; : . . - x; , . u .u , ,. , f : t . , ),1 v.' , ii à'+. 'iin ( i%. 1. , ' ' ' . J' ' ' r ' :.' :. . . 
'
. t z'h'tijqè.z p,j.pr ,!t!, In/yf'j. #, trI!atAxgA'illijuN.' . : , ; ..,'ga .. ..':. .7 . ) '* .jl.IF w.jl.a!r:lk .1Ik:I. 41.:,, .1121 . . $ ; . j . ( , < . r ;1Kw., .:K.:r :.és x...e .,..xp.g..xsqc.. n;,u- z:s, wp.,m a...s x...r as.. . x... ...,....,a...... .... r' '' 

....g' ' . . . .u.. ;u- .g,. :ua ::..: ? z '. . , - . ' t '*: . : . 
. -.. s... ;%... . z;s .. . .qq = .. ..% -- :. : . .ç<. !. .. -ë: ( ; . , . , . . zy ... , . r . . . .. k c . -. , z x . Jà ''4 . 

' 
, . .'

-
-

c
'
. 
., -'(11J! IIF;II -!!1ik '1r'dil' lliir -kfljik C. .rEIIE'.(II( Oz . ;r!!;IL . ;t .. :.. .-

-
. 
. g. . ?

' 
j.. t - '.: ..L : '.

'

, :.qr t .. (.- :. . .. 
''. kï . : ? '..$r 'î, ..';.,; .' . .-:;. r. '..-..- '.-. .-: '.: . , - -. E7.' - .''.- . C . '. :'- ,'. . .. , . ,

' 

.
' :- ) . . -. '.) .,, j, ;, :. r- ' .., - . .. .h : à ; -.r.- : . . - .

Electronic wire transfer in the approximate amount of
October 22, 2019 $121,078 from RSNE, LLC JP Morgan Chase bank account

' ending in 0091 into WDS Distributioq Corp Rbgions Bank
account endh in 9454

' 
' 

. Electronic wire tranKfer in the àoproximate''' àmount of
. i * '*

' 

' 
.February 17, 2021 $198,456 from Gefftek LtC Citibimk bnnk account ending in

4795 into Elant Wholesale LLC Citibank account enéing in
6832

6
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Electronic wire kansfer in tlie approximate amount of
Febmmy '19, 2021 $250,900 from M8 'Meds LLC Wells Fargo bank acùotmt

ending 5667 1to M DSD Enterprises LLC JP M organ Chast
accolmt endin in 5301

In total, ihe Derendnnt and his co-conàpH tors are responsi
.ble for laundee g

E 
zl

232 800 000 '111 proceeds obtqined througll thc illicit sale of divertedapproximately $ , , 
,

d ltemteda and misbzandtd drugq by tlw Dmg Diversion Compani' es toothe W holesalea q

Companies.

n e preceding statqment Ls a s , made for the purpose of providing the

Court with q fnntllnl basis for my gttilty plea to the charges against me. It does not

lclude atl of thç facts known to me concerning the criminal actlvity in wbioh I and

thers were engaged. I make this stateient V owingly and voluntarily because I am ilio

fact guilty of tlwLodmcs oharged.

tg/,./<I7ate:
. # ' '': ' '

By: W
U 1lE D:z

Defendant .

.r
? 

z ; sz , l'tzaz...,,v .,s: . A yé- ( .

TERBSA W ILLIAMS
Cotmsel for Defendmit

. . Ljjgqq y)., .Ixate; l

12/12/2022
Date: ' By: -

ALEXANDER THORPOGOZELSKI
Trial Attpm ey
Fraud Section, Crimimal pivision
U.5. Depallment of Jllstice

7
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12-12-22Date: 
. By:

TDJOTRY IABZAHAM
Asslm nt Uniled states M omey
U.S.Ae mey's 0& e for le
Sou*em Digdd of Florida
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